

C.L. "Butch" Otter Governor

**Terry T. Uhling** Chairman Boise District 2

**Roger W. Chase** Vice-Chairman Pocatello

#### **Bob** Graham

District 4

Secretary Bonners Ferry District 1

Charles "Chuck" Cuddy Orofino At Large

Leonard Beck Burley District 3

Vince Alberdi Kimberly At Large

Jeff Raybould

St. Anthony At Large

**Peter Van Der Meulen** Hailey At Large

# IDAHO WATER RESOURCE BOARD

#### **AMENDED AGENDA** MEETING NO. 6-11 OF THE IDAHO WATER RESOURCE BOARD

#### November 2, 2011, at approximately 9:00 a.m.

Idaho Water Center Conf. Rm. 602 C & D 322 E. Front St., Boise, ID 83720

November 1, 20111:00 p.m. – 4:00 p.m.<br/>\*\*CANCELLED\*\*Water Resource Planning Committee<br/>\*\*CANCELLED\*\*November 2, 20118:00 a.m. – 9:00 a.m.<br/>9:15 a.m. – 12:00 p.m.Executive Session (closed to the public)<br/>Regular IWRB Meeting

1:30 p.m. – 3:00 p.m. Financial Programs Committee

- EXECUTIVE SESSION The Board will meet pursuant to Idaho Code Section 67-2345(1)(c) and (f) to communicate with legal counsel regarding pending litigation acquisition of property not owned by the state. Executive Session is closed to the public.
- 2. Roll Call
- 3. Agenda and Approval of Minutes 5-11
- 4. Public Comment The Board will allocate a period of time (not to exceed 30 minutes) for the public to address the Board on subjects not specifically shown as an agenda item.
- 5. IWRB Committee and Other Reports
  - a. Water Resource Planning Committee
  - b. Streamflow Enhancement and Minimum Streamflow Committee
  - c. Upper Snake River Advisory Committee (Operations Forum)
- 6. IWRB Financial Program
  - a. Status Report
  - b. Ground Water Districts Bonds Update
- 7. ESPA CAMP and Aquifer Management Efforts Update
- 8. Water Storage Studies Update
- 9. Request for Consent to Propose Rule Changes for Injection Wells
- 10. Director's Report
- 11. Other Items Board Members May Wish to Present
- 12. Next Meeting and Adjourn

#### AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES

The meeting will be held in facilities that meet the accessibility requirements of the Americans with Disabilities Act. If you require special accommodations to attend, participate in, or understand the meeting, please make advance arrangements by contacting Diana Ball, Administrative Assistant, by email <u>diana.ball@idwr.idaho.gov</u> or by phone at (208) 287-4800.



C.L. "Butch" Otter Governor

**Terry T. Uhling** Chairman Boise District 2

**Roger W. Chase** Vice Chairman Pocatello District 4

**Bob Graham** Secretary Bonners Ferry District 1

Charles "Chuck" Cuddy Orofino At Large

*Leonard Beck Burley District 3* 

Vince Alberdi Kimberly At Large

Jeff Raybould St. Anthony At Large

**Peter Van Der Meulen** Hailey At Large

# **IDAHO WATER RESOURCE BOARD**

### **MEETING MINUTES 5-11**

Shilo Inn Idaho Falls, Idaho October 7, 2011

Chairman Uhling was absent. Vice Chairman Chase called the meeting to order at approximately 9:30 a.m., and roll call was taken. There were 6 members present. Mr. Uhling and Mr. Graham were absent. A quorum was present.

Agenda Item No. 1, Roll Call

**Board Members Present** 

Roger Chase, Vice Chairman Chuck Cuddy Peter Van Der Meulen Leonard Beck Vince Alberdi Jeff Raybould Terry Uhling, *Absent* Bob Graham, *Absent* 

Staff Members Present

Brian Patton, Planning Bureau Chief	Helen Harrington, Planning Section Manager
Rich Rigby, Federal Liaison	Diana Ball, Administrative Assistant

**Guests** Present

Lynn Tominaga, IGWA Jon Bowling, Idaho Power Co. Walt Poole, Idaho Fish and Game Dale Swenson, FMID Mike Webster, Governor's Office John O'Connell, Capital Press Sarah Rupp, Friends of the Teton Kim Trotter, Trout Unlimited Lyle Swank, WD 1 Watermaster Jim Tucker, Idaho Power Co. Jim Wrigley, WedBush Securities Inc. Hal Anderson, Idaho Water Engineering Douglas Rosecrans, Foothill Ranch HOA Lloyd Hicks, South Fork Canals Adona Ripple, Friends of the Teton

#### Agenda Item No. 2, Agenda and Approval of Minutes 4-11

There were no changes to the agenda. Mr. Vince Alberdi made a motion to correct page 2 of Minutes 4-11 to reflect that Mr. Alberdi seconded the motion to nominate Mr. Chase as Vice Chairman and that Mr. Beck made the original motion. Mr. Raybould seconded the motion to approve Minutes 4-11 as corrected. Voice vote. All in favor. Motion carried. Minutes for Meeting 4-11 were approved as corrected.

#### Agenda Item No. 3, Public Comment

Vice Chairman Chase asked for public comment regarding any items not included on the agenda. There were no public comments.

#### Agenda Item 4, IWRB Committees and Other Reports

#### a. <u>Water Resource Planning Committee</u>

Mr. Leonard Beck, committee Chair, provided a brief update to the Board and expressed his appreciation for staff assistance in organizing the meetings. Following the appointment of members to this committee in July, a meeting was held on August 19 and all appointed members were present. At this meeting, Ms. Helen Harrington reviewed what was previously done by the State Water Plan Committee. Mr. Clive Strong, Deputy Attorney General, educated members of the committee on the purpose of the committee.

Ms. Harrington provided a list of current activities being addressed by the newly restructured committee. Previously, this committee was addressing the State Water Plan, but the role and scope has been expanded. At this time, the committee's primary activities are related to the State Water Plan revision process.

The next committee meeting is scheduled for November 1, 2011, in Boise, Idaho. At the November 1 meeting, the State Water Plan revision process will be addressed and specifically, the Snake River Basin section. The anticipated timeline for completion of this process will be to present a complete draft revision to the full Board in March 2012 and hold public meetings / hearing across the state throughout the summer – anticipating 5 to 6 meetings. Tentative locations include Coeur d'Alene, Lewiston, Boise, Twin Falls, Preston, Salmon, and Idaho Falls. Following the required public comment period, revision will be made and then brought back to the IWRB for approval. The intent is that a final revised State Water Plan will be submitted to the 2013 Idaho Legislature.

#### b. <u>Streamflow Enhancement and Minimum Streamflow Committee</u>

Ms. Harrington stated that this committee held a meeting on August 19, 2011. At that meeting, staff provided an overview of the purpose of the committee and the restructuring of the Board committees. Background briefings on the minimum streamflow program and authorities, along with the water transaction program were presented by Ms. Morgan Case, IDWR. The next meeting is scheduled for October 7, 2011, to begin upon adjournment of the Board meeting in Idaho Falls. The committee will focus on expanding the water transaction program beyond the Upper Salmon drainage. Friends of the Teton River will present information on expanding the program in the Teton basin.

Mr. Peter Van Der Meulen gave a brief overview of the 2011 Semi-Annual Columbia Basin Water Transaction Program (CBWTP) Qualified Local Entity (QLE) Meeting and field trip recently held in Idaho. Mr. Van Der Meulen highlighted examples of the logic models that staff uses to coordinate the entities involved to successfully come up with an end product. He attributed the success of the program to the energy and commitment of IDWR staff and individuals involved. This process is quite different in other states. In Idaho, the IWRB is the only QLE in the state, which is beneficial for acquiring the technical data required to complete the water transaction program applications.

Mr. Van Der Meulen stated that Bonneville Power Administration (BPA) and NFWF, which are the entities charged with administering BPA dollars, both communicated they are very pleased with the work that Idaho has accomplished. In the future, it will be more of a performance based reporting process. There will be more measurements of fish in the creek and additional redds in rewatered portions, and Idaho is doing a good job in these areas. QLEs from multiple states shared plans that they are still working on, while Idaho was able to share what has already been accomplished in our state.

Ms. Harrington stated Ms. Case played a key role in the development of the QLE meeting agenda, and other attendees requested an explanation as to the IWRB's role and the distinction between the IWRB and IDWR roles in the process. There was an overall positive response from attendees, and they enjoyed seeing the successful transactions completed by Idaho.

Vice Chairman Chase expressed his appreciation for the staff and their efforts in the water transaction program.

#### c. <u>Upper Snake River Advisory Committee (Operations Forum)</u>

Mr. Rich Rigby provided a brief update and stated there have been three meetings held to date. Board member Roger Chase has participated in these meetings as the Board's appointee. At the first meeting, the issue of too much water and the rate of runoff were addressed. At the last meeting, there was discussion about fall operations. Mr. Rigby stated he was pleased to see that BOR cooperated in a manner that benefited Idaho Power's fish operations. In this wet year, Idaho Power has worked hard to keep too much water from running through Brownlee and raising havoc with fall Chinook plan. The next committee meeting is scheduled for October 26, 2011. He stated that there is work to be done and the committee will likely solve problems as they come up. He also stated that establishing these relationships and the structure has been very helpful.

#### d. Interim Natural Resources Legislative Committee

Mr. Brian Patton provided a copy of the presentation he presented to the Interim Natural Resources Legislative Committee on August 29, 2011. Initially, Representative Raybould and the committee requested an update on the Teton study. At the committee meeting, there was a wide range of discussion, including IWRB storage investigations, aquifer planning activities, and Eastern Snake Plain projects. Mr. Chuck Cuddy was also in attendance at the committee meeting. He commended Mr. Patton for his participation and presentation to the committee.

#### Agenda Item 5, Financial Items

#### a. <u>Financial Program Status Report</u>

Mr. Brian Patton presented the Financial Program status report update as of September 1, 2011. Total IWRB funds committed but not disbursed are approximately \$15 million. The outstanding loan principal balance is \$18.2 million. The total uncommitted balance is approximately \$2.9 million. The Board will be taking action on one loan request for \$150,000 and monies are available. The Board will also be taking action on a request from High Country RC & D for ESPA CAMP cost-share funds. Mr. Patton informed the Board that the Harpster Water District and the Preston, Riverdale & Mink Creek Canal Co. have repaid their loans in full.

One potential larger loan application is the Marysville Canal Company phased program that is converting open canal to gravity pressure pipelines. The next phase would likely be a \$1 million loan and may be addressed at the November Board meeting.

#### b. Foothill Ranch HOA Loan

Ms. Harrington presented the Foothill Ranch HOA loan application in the amount of \$150,000. The loan funds will be used to repair an existing well with new casing, screens, filters, and pump with motor, and install 2 new 20,000-gallon underground water storage tanks. The well is currently inoperable and is needed to provide fire suppression water and irrigation water for the residences.

Mr. Doug Rosecrans, Foothill Ranch HOA, addressed the Board and responded to the Board's questions concerning fire district coverage for the Foothill Ranch area, as well as the operating and maintenance costs associated with the HOA and the basis for these costs. Mr. Rosecrans also clarified how the loan would be repaid. There are 30 properties in the HOA and the estimated \$700 / per homeowner would provide \$21,000 annually less \$4,000 annual operating costs leaving a balance of \$17,000. The \$15,444 annual loan repayment would be paid out of the \$17,000.

Staff recommended approval of the Foothill Ranch HOA Revolving Development Account loan in the amount of \$150,000 at 6% interest with a 15-year repayment term with conditions as specified in the resolution.

Mr. Beck made a motion to approve the Revolving Development Account loan to Foothill Ranch HOA as proposed. The motion was seconded by Mr. Van Der Meulen. Vice Chairman Chase called for a roll call vote.

Roll Call Vote: Mr. Cuddy: Aye; Mr. Alberdi: Aye; Mr. Chase: Aye; Mr. Beck: Aye; Mr. Raybould: Aye; Mr. Van Der Meulen: Aye; Mr. Graham: Absent; Mr. Uhling: Absent. Roll Call Vote: 6 Ayes, 2 Absent. Motion carried.

Mr. Patton proposed making a change to the agenda to address Item 8, WD 1 Rental Pool Procedures, at this time to accommodate Mr. Lyle Swank. The Board was in agreement to move this agenda item.

#### Agenda Item No. 8. WD 1 Rental Pool Procedures

Mr. Lyle Swank addressed the Board about the requested changes to the WD 1 Rental Pool Procedures. Mr. Patton noted that there was a lengthy discussion regarding the proposed changes at the work session on October 6, and the Board has a resolution before them to adopt the proposed changes, which were approved and submitted by the Committee of Nine for the Board's consideration.

Mr. Raybould made a motion that the Board adopt the resolution to approve the proposed WD 1 Rental Pool Procedures as submitted. Mr. Beck seconded the motion. Voice vote. All were in favor. Motion carried.

The Board meeting returned to the published agenda order.

#### Agenda Item 5, Financial Items

#### c. Ground Water Districts Bond Progress Update

Mr. Patton provided a memo from Mr. Rick Skinner, the Board's bond counsel, which contained an update on the ground water districts bonds that will fund the purchase of the three fish hatcheries. Approximately 40% of the bond series will be taxable and 60% will have a tax-exempt status. The taxable series will allow the ground water districts to lease these facilities out and use the lease revenue to offset the cost, in accordance with IRS bonding rules. Security would be 125% annual assessment by each ground water district for their proportioned amount of the debt. It is the Board's bond counsel's preference for one loan agreement and that all ground water districts be signatories, jointly and severally liable for the debt. The ground water districts have submitted a request for judicial validation to the court, which allows them to enter into the debt. The hearing is scheduled for October 13 in American Falls.

There was a short break in the meeting.

#### Agenda Item No. 6, Planning Activities

#### a. ESPA CAMP and Aquifer Management Efforts Update

#### (1) High Country RC & D Funds Request

Mr. Rigby addressed the Board and provided a copy of the application letter on behalf of High Country RC &D requesting 40% of their 2010/2011 operating budget in the amount of \$158,292. Mr. Alberdi moved that in line with CAMP, the Board cover up to 40% of the \$45,000 needed to repair the 25 ground generators, non precedent setting, one time, in the amount of \$18,000. Mr. Cuddy seconded the motion. Mr. Beck requested that the maker and the second of the motion consider adding another \$2,000 to cover 40% of the funds requested to produce educational brochures. As the maker of the motion and the second, Mr. Alberdi and Mr. Cuddy amended the motion to pay a total of \$20,000 to High Country RC & D. Mr. Chase requested that the contract include a provision for submitting receipts to the Board prior to receiving funds. Mr. Patton stated that is the standard language used for these contracts. Vice Chairman Chase called for a roll call vote.

Roll Call Vote: Mr. Cuddy: Aye; Mr. Alberdi: Aye; Mr. Chase: Aye; Mr. Beck: Aye; Mr. Raybould: Abstain; Mr. Van Der Meulen: Aye; Mr. Graham: Absent; Mr. Uhling: Absent. Roll Call Vote: 5 Ayes, 1 Abstain, 2 Absent. Motion carried.

#### (2) Aquifer Recharge Discussion

Mr. Rich Rigby stated there is \$100,960 remaining in Board funds unobligated for recharge and IGWA funds available in the amount of \$31,776 for a total of \$132,736 available for recharge, which would be enough to recharge 44,245 acre-feet. Mr. Rigby thanked the Board for their support and counsel on this issue.

Lower valley requests for recharge that include payment are American Falls District #2 with 32,000 ac-ft estimated, 15,000 ac-ft for Northside Canal, and 3,000 ac-ft Southwest Irrigation Dist, or 50,000 ac-ft

total, which would exceed the 44,245 ac-ft. If less than that is recharged, the surplus would be recharged above American Falls and would be split between Aberdeen Springfield and Great Feeder. Fremont Madison has recharged about 44% in the past. The money that is being spent was appropriated by Legislature for managed recharge. There was discussion on where money will come from in the future for recharge efforts. To meet CAMP goals, recharge needs to occur above and below American Falls and needs to be balanced.

Mr. Lynn Tominaga, IGWA, addressed the Board and informed them that IGWA is hoping to pay another \$100,000 next year for recharge and will discuss making this a permanent program at their next meeting. They are also working with Aberdeen Springfield to build a structure that will allow recharge sooner.

Mr. Rigby presented a resolution to amend the Board's resolution from May to give first priority to areas below American Falls Dam and after meeting those opportunities, the Board would fund and apportion areas above American Falls.

Roll Call Vote: Mr. Cuddy: Aye; Mr. Alberdi: Aye; Mr. Chase: Aye; Mr. Beck: Aye; Mr. Raybould: Aye; Mr. Van Der Meulen: Aye; Mr. Graham: Absent; Mr. Uhling: Absent. Roll Call Vote: 6 Ayes, 2 Absent. Motion carried.

Mr. Hal Anderson, Upper Snake Mitigation Solutions, LLC, addressed the Board in response to a question from Mr. Beck about mitigation credits and how and when those credits might be used.

#### b. <u>**RP CAMP Status Update</u>**</u>

Ms. Harrington briefed the Board on the progress of the implementation process since the Plan was adopted by the Board in July. The Plan directs that the Board will provide leadership and coordination of the implementation of the Plan. To begin the implementation process, Ms. Harrington made presentations at the North Idaho Mayors' Coalition and discussed the status of the Plan. She also gave a presentation to the Aquifer Protection Council in northern Idaho. Staff proposed that implementation be initiated by forming small working groups to work on specific parts of the Plan.

Ms. Harrington also informed the Board that Mr. Gary Spackman, Interim Director of IDWR, will be meeting next week with the state of Washington water management officials to discuss a Memorandum of Agreement primarily related to cooperation on technical issues and data management. This MOA directs that the states meet to discuss aquifer water management issues. Planning staff will also be in attendance and participating to ensure that water planning efforts through the Board are part of the long-term water management decisions.

#### c. <u>Treasure Valley CAMP Status Update</u>

Ms. Harrington updated the Board on recent activities by the TV CAMP drafting group. A draft was presented to the full Advisory Committee in June with a 60-day response time for comments. Those comments are currently being integrated into the draft, and the drafting group will revise the draft plan and provide it to the full Advisory Committee. It is anticipated that a Draft TV CAMP document will be completed by next spring and then will be presented for public comment.

Mr. Jeff Raybould asked if RAFN (1996 Municipal Water Rights Act) is still a source of contention. Ms. Harrington stated that the issues are being discussed and resolved.

#### Agenda Item No. 7, Water Storage Studies Update

#### Lower Boise River Interim Feasibility Study

Ms. Brian Patton stated that the screening analysis was completed and identified the top three sites as 1) enlargement of Arrowrock Dam, 2) Alexander Flats site, and 3) Twin Springs site. The Corps further investigated Arrowrock Dam for potential fatal flaws in the concept. The Corps has completed the investigation and found no fatal flaws and will plan on issuing an interim report on that concept to the Board at the November meeting.

#### Henrys Fork Basin Study

At the last meeting, Lesa Stark of the Bureau of Reclamation presented a list of carry forward actions to the Board. It is anticipated that phase of the study will be completed by the end of this year.

#### Weiser Galloway

At the Board meeting in July, approximately \$2 million was allocated to investigate two items: a geologic investigation to answer several questions involving the integrity of the site and a hydrologic operations analysis. The Board has entered into further agreements with the Corps to carry out those investigations. The Corps is also contributing funds to complete these investigations.

Mr. Patton confirmed that there are 8 proposed surface water storage alternatives, including Teton Dam, in the Henrys Fork Basin that are being investigated. Mr. Raybould stated that the Legislature funded the Teton rebuilding study and that Teton needs to receive adequate attention in these studies.

#### Agenda Item No. 8. WD 1 Rental Pool Procedures

This agenda item was discussed after Agenda Item No. 4 in order to accommodate Mr. Lyle Swank's schedule as WD 1 Watermaster.

#### Agenda Item No. 9, Director's Report

Mr. Patton presented items to the IWRB on behalf of Interim Director Gary Spackman. He presented a letter of appreciation from Mr. Spackman to Mr. Karl Wirkus, Regional Director of BOR, for BORs actions during management of high runoff this spring during flood control operations. Mr. Patton informed the Board of draft legislation that IDWR will be presenting to the 2012 Legislature: 1) to address the water right licensing backlog all new permits that require proof of beneficial use would be completed by independent water rights examiners. Currently, the Department completes these, and the fees charged do not come close to covering the Department expense. 2) dam safety legislation, which covers three items, drop dams that are inspected by other parties or those that have federal dam inspection programs, further require those owners of high hazard dams that are not covered by this category to hire private sector engineers to complete the inspections required every 2 years, and change to regulation of small dams. The Department currently regulates dams taller than 10 ft and that impound more than 50 ac-ft, however, all dams less than 20 ft currently have no requirement to submit plans or specifications to the Department. In an effort to streamline processes and reduce costs, the proposed legislation would eliminate Department inspections for all dams less than 20 ft.

There was discussion about the inspection process and current legislation that applies to the dams less than 20 feet. Mr. Beck asked for clarification of the responsibility and costs of high hazard dam inspections. A suggestion was made that the proposed legislation be changed to include an option for owners of high hazard dams to use the Department for inspections at an increased fee.

#### Agenda Item No. 10. Other Items IWRB Members May Wish to Present

There were no additional items that Board members wished to address.

#### Agenda Item No. 11, Next Meeting and Adjourn

The next regular IWRB meeting is scheduled as a one-day work session and meeting, November 2, 2011, at the Idaho Water Center, 322 E. Front St., Boise, Idaho. A Water Resource Planning Committee Meeting is scheduled for November 1, 2011, at the Idaho Water Center in Boise, Idaho. Several Board members will also be attending the IWUA Law Seminar in Boise, Idaho, on November 3 and 4.

A draft 2012 calendar was provided. There was a general discussion about the proposed dates. All meetings will be held in Boise at the Idaho Water Center unless otherwise noticed. The 2012 meeting dates are scheduled as follows:

January 26 and 27 March 15 and 16 May 17 and 18 July 26 and 27 September 6 and 7 November 27 and 28

The IWRB Meeting 5-11 was adjourned at approximately 11:40 a.m.

Respectfully submitted this \_\_\_\_\_ day of \_\_\_\_\_, 2011.

Bob Graham, Secretary

Diana Ball, Administrative Assistant II

#### Board Actions:

- 1. Mr. Alberdi moved to approve Minutes for Meeting 4-11 as corrected. Mr. Cuddy seconded the motion. Voice vote. All were in favor. Motion carried. Minutes for Meeting 4-11 were approved as corrected.
- 2. Mr. Beck made a motion to approve the Revolving Development Account loan to Foothill Ranch HOA as proposed. Mr. Van Der Meulen seconded the motion.

Roll Call Vote: Mr. Cuddy: Aye; Mr. Alberdi: Aye; Mr. Chase: Aye; Mr. Beck: Aye; Mr. Raybould: Aye; Mr. Van Der Meulen: Aye; Mr. Graham: Absent; Mr. Uhling: Absent. Roll Call Vote: 6 Ayes, 2 Absent. Motion carried.

- 3. Mr. Raybould made a motion that the Board adopt the resolution to approve the proposed WD 1 Rental Pool Procedures as submitted. Mr. Beck seconded the motion. Voice vote. All were in favor. Motion carried.
- 4. Mr. Alberdi made a motion to cover up to 40% of the \$45,000 needed to repair the 25 ground generators, non precedent setting, one time, in the amount of \$18,000. Mr. Cuddy seconded the motion. Mr. Beck requested that the maker and the second of the motion consider adding another \$2,000 to cover 40% of the funds requested to produce educational brochures. Mr. Alberdi and Mr. Cuddy amended the motion to cover a total of \$20,000 to High Country RC & D.

Roll Call Vote: Mr. Cuddy: Aye; Mr. Alberdi: Aye; Mr. Chase: Aye; Mr. Beck: Aye; Mr. Raybould: Abstain; Mr. Van Der Meulen: Aye; Mr. Graham: Absent; Mr. Uhling: Absent. Roll Call Vote: 5 Ayes, 1 Abstain, 2 Absent. Motion carried.

## Memorandum

To:Idaho Water Resource BoardFrom:Helen HarringtonDate:October 24, 2011Re:Water Resource Planning ("Planning") Committee



The Planning Committee will meet on November 1, 2011. The IWRB will be briefed on the outcome of that meeting.

The agenda for the meeting includes continuing revision of the draft policies and further discussion about the Snake River Basin section.

## Memorandum

To: Idaho Water Resource Board

From: Helen Harrington

Date: October 24, 2011



Re: Stream Flow Enhancement and Minimum Stream Flow ("Stream Flow") Committee

#### **Action Item**

Consider expanding the Idaho Water Transactions Program into the Upper Teton River basin (or others) which has stream flow conditions detrimental to resident fish species which could benefit from water transactions to increase flow.

#### Discussion

The Stream Flow Committee met in Idaho Falls on October 7, 2011. The primary purpose of the meeting was to investigate the concept of formally expanding the Idaho Water Transactions Program into river basins without anadromous fish concerns. The Friends of the Teton River requested the IWRB consider undertaking transactions to address flow limiting factors for resident fish species in the Teton River basin. Yellowstone Cutthroat trout, designated by the state of Idaho as a Species of Concern, has been declining in its native range and would be the primary species to be addressed by water transactions. The Committee met with representatives from the Friends of the Teton River and discussed the implications of expanding the existing program beyond the Upper Salmon River basin. Among the issues discussed are:

#### 1. Funding

The Columbia Basin Water Transactions Program (CBWTP) has funding available for transactions for resident fish species. The annual funding generally splits the funds 70% for anadromous fish projects and 25-30% for resident fish projects. Idaho has only accessed the resident funding once for a project in the Little Lost River basin with Trout Unlimited as a partner. Based on conversations with CBWTP staff, there does not appear to be a potential competition for funding between the anadromous and resident projects.

#### 2. Staff Resources

The current program has limited staff to take on additional water transactions activities. The Friends of the Teton River has a full time staff person responsible for stream flow restoration activities. The proposal by Friends of the Teton River provides a working partner to locate and develop projects to bring to the Board. This partnership can minimize use of staff resources while accomplishing the project needs.

#### 3. Benefits

- a. Accessing the resident fish project funding could bring Idaho additional CBWTP funds which are currently going to other states in the region.
- b. Implementation of ESPA CAMP goals through providing opportunities for providing water for recharge and conversion projects through downstream transfer of surface water rights in a manner that enhances flows in flow-limited tributaries (ESPA CAMP Section 3.2.2 (F)).
- c. Expansion of the IWTP into other basins demonstrates the Board's role in resolving conflicts through voluntary, local solutions.

#### **Committee Recommendation**

The Stream Flow Committee endorsed actively expanding the Idaho Water Transactions Program into the Teton River Basin and recommends the IWRB support this expansion.

# MEMO



To: Idaho Water Resource Board From Bill Quinn, Recharge Coordinator Subjects: 2011 Late Season Recharge

**Date:** October 26, 2011

The presence of multiple sponsoring entities has made 2011 Late Season Recharge more complex this year than in past years. This fall there are recharge programs that are being sponsored by or for (1) the Water Resource Board, (2) mitigation purposes, and (3) a newly formed group known as Upper Snake Mitigation Solutions. Five other entities, Twin Falls Canal Company and three of the Great Feeder canals have expressed intents to conduct recharge through their facilities.

The Board's recharge program is focused on recharge below American Falls. To the extent that there are unspent funds in the Board's remaining recharge budget for 2011, the Board may be able to pay conveyance fees for a limited amount of recharge above American Falls. There is currently \$132,736 remaining in the Board's 2011 recharge budget, enough to pay for 44,245 acre-feet.

Three canal companies or irrigation districts are participating in the Board's program. They are: North Side Canal Co., Southwest Irrigation District and American Falls Reservoir District No. 2 (Milner-Gooding Canal). To date, 8,164 acre-feet have been recharged through the Board's program at a cost of \$24,492.

Aberdeen-Springfield Canal Co. and North Side Canal Co. are conducting mitigation recharge. This recharge will not accrue costs to the Water Board, but staff is tracking the volume of water recharged under this program.

Upper Snake Mitigation Solutions has agreements with several canals for late season recharge. They currently are: Fremont-Madison ID, Idaho ID, New Sweden ID, Peoples Canal & Irrigation Co., Snake River Valley ID, and United Canal Co. As with the Surface Water Coalition recharge, this recharge will not accrue costs to the Water Board, but staff is tracking the volume of water recharged.

Twin Falls would use the Board's recharge right, but at no cost to the Board. The Great Feeder Canals would use storage water at no cost to the Board.

The attached table indicates all recharge being conducted this fall through October 26<sup>th</sup>.

	20	11 Late Se	ason Man	aged Rechai	ge through	October 26	
	flow cfs *	acre-feet	cost	# days on	avg a-f/day	source water	comments
IWRB Sponsored Recharge							
all below American Falls							
AFRD2	330	6,831	20,493	18	380	nat'l flow	recharge is at LSRARD site N of Shoshone
start 10-11						Board right	
North Side	30	655	1,965	11	60	storage +	recharge is at test spill site SE of Gooding off X Canal
start 10-11	l l					nat'l flow	Comitted to 1,500 a-f of mitigation recharge.
						Board right	Possible IWRB recharge later
C	26	670	2.024	40			The second s
Southwest	26	678	2,034	13	52	nat'l flow	Total injection rate expected to be
start 10-15						Board right	~12,000 gpm (~27 cfs) divided between 5 wells.
total Board sponsored	386	8,164	24,492		164		
Other Recharge							
above American Falls							
		0.054					
Aberdeen-Springfield		9,351		35	267	storage	committed to 8,898 a-f of mitigation recharge
start 9/22 end 10-26							End on 10-26-11
Fremont-Madison						storage	reported to be participating in Upper Snake
						storage	Mitigation Solutions (USMS) plan. Nov. 1 expected
							start date
							start date
Great Feeder canals		l	ļ		ļ	storage	No report. Possible recharge in Farmer's Friend,
							Progressive, and Entertprise at no cost
Idaho	33	188		7			USMS plan
start 10-21	1			Ì		1	report thru 10-24
New Sweden	81	1,771		11		storage	USMS plan
start 10-17			]			1	
Peoples	46	1,006		11			USMS plan
start 10-17		ļ	l				
Snake River Valley	49	923		10			USMS plan
start 10-18			l	l			
United	37	730		10			USMS plan
start 10-18	3,	, 30					
below American Falls		<u> </u>		<b> </b>	1	1	
Twin Falls		[				nat'l flow	No report
					1	Board right	recharge at no cost.
total below AF		8,164		1	1	1	
total above AF		13,969	L				
TOTAL		22,133					

All Recharge Volumes are Preliminary and Subject to Verification

\* most recent reported flow

# Memorandum

To: Idaho Water Resource Board

From: Cynthia Bridge Clark

Date: October 25, 2011

Re: Status of Ongoing Storage Water Studies



#### Lower Boise River Interim Feasibility Study

- The *Water Storage Screening Analysis* was completed in August 2010 by the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (Corps) in partnership with the IWRB. The top three ranked storage sites identified through the analysis were a raise or new dam at the existing Arrowrock Dam site, the Alexander Flats site, and the Twin Springs site. The IWRB recommended the top three ranked sites be carried forward for more in-depth analysis as called for in the Interim Feasibility Study agreement. Study activities were suspended after completion of the screening analysis pending availability of federal match funding.
- In June 2011, the Corps received \$30,000 of federal match funds to resume study activities. As directed by the IWRB, the Corps performed additional engineering analysis of the storage concept at the Arrowrock Dam, the top ranked site in the screening analysis, to identify any potential fatal flaws. The results of the analysis are reflected in the *Lower Boise River Interim Feasibility Study, Preliminary Evaluation of Arrowrock Site, October 2011* (report).
- The report examined the proposed Arrowrock site to identify the following: whether a raise of the existing structure or construction of a new facility downstream would be most appropriate; whether there were any major engineering or geological constraints that would make either concept unfeasible; and identify issues for future study.
- The report did not identify any geologic or engineering constraints that could discount one concept over the other, but recommended further study of raising the existing Arrowrock Dam if only one concept is pursued. The report also identifies additional issues that should be evaluated in order to better understand the viability of Arrowrock site.
- A summary of the results will be provided at the November 2, 2011 IWRB meeting. No action is required by the IWRB at this time.

#### Henrys Fork Basin Study

- The IWRB and the Bureau of Reclamation (Reclamation) are conducting a study of water resources in the Henrys Fork River basin to develop alternatives to improve water supply conditions in the Eastern Snake Plain aquifer and Upper Snake River basin. The study will identify opportunities for development of water supplies and improvement of water management while sustaining environmental quality.
- Reclamation is currently performing a "reconnaissance level" evaluation and technical analysis of alternatives identified for further study. These include new or existing surface water storage projects, as well as managed ground water recharge, agricultural conservation and management, municipal and industrial conservation, and market based alternatives.

- Reclamation continues to provide updates on the progress of the technical analysis to the Henry's Fork Watershed Council and is coordinating directly with the stakeholders for data and feedback. Reclamation expects to complete the reconnaissance phase by December 2011 and to initiate the appraisal level analysis of a short-list of alternatives by March 2012.
- No action is required by the IWRB at this time.

#### Weiser-Galloway Project

- The Weiser-Galloway Gap Analysis, Economic Evaluation and Risk-Based Cost Analysis Project, March 2011 (Gap Analysis) was a reexamination of the previously studied Galloway Dam and Reservoir site (U.S. Army Corps of Engineers studies from 1987-1994) based on current conditions and new information. It identified 181 gaps in information in earlier studies, two of which were identified as critical to determining whether to move forward with comprehensive new feasibility, environmental and engineering studies of the Weiser-Galloway project. The two critical gaps included:
  - 1. Determining the safety, suitability and integrity of geologic structures at the potential dam and reservoir site.
  - 2. Determining whether benefits would be realized from the Weiser-Galloway project by analyzing a series of operating scenarios. Potential benefits include flood control, hydropower, water storage, pump back, irrigation, recreation and flow augmentation requirements for anadromous fish recovery.
- On July 29, 2011, the IWRB passed a resolution authorizing expenditure of up to \$2 million dollars to study the two major gaps. On August 26, 2011, the IWRB entered into cost-sharing partnership agreements with the Corps to complete the two new technical studies: 1) the *Weiser River Geologic Investigation and Analysis Project*, and 2) the *Snake River Operational Analysis Project*.
- Similar to the Gap Analysis, both studies are being conducted in part under the Corps' Planning Assistance to States (PAS) Program allowing the Corps to use its technical expertise to support the State's planning efforts and to share a portion of the study costs.
- Geologic Investigation activities: Site visit performed by members of the project technical team to develop a drilling plan; developing of access agreements; and initiation of an Environmental Assessment in the areas impacted by drilling activities in coordination with the BLM.
- Operational Analysis activities: Perform basic hydrologic tasks; identify appropriate system optimization models; and identify operational constraints. (The bulk of the Operational Analysis will be delayed until results of the Geologic Analysis are available. However, preliminary tasks will be performed with validation from the Idaho Power Company and the Bureau of Reclamation.)
- The studies are expected to be complete by fall 2013.
- No action is required by the IWRB at this time.

#### BEFORE THE IDAHO WATER RESOURCE BOARD

#### OF THE

#### STATE OF IDAHO

)

)

)

#### IN THE MATTER OF AMENDING THE RULES FOR THE CONSTRUCTION AND USE OF INJECTION WELLS

A RESOLUTION

WHEREAS, the Idaho Water Resource Board (Board) has adopted rules, IDAPA 37, Title 03, Chapter 03, as it is considered necessary to carry out the purpose of Chapter 39, Title 42, Idaho Code, for the construction and use of injection wells; and,

WHEREAS, the rules were last amended in 2003; and,

WHEREAS, anticipated industry needs for oil and gas development in Idaho require new Administrative Rules for Class II injection wells; and,

WHEREAS, an update to the State's Administrative Rules for Class V injection wells is required to make them consistent with the recently revised Idaho Code; and,

WHEREAS, the Board now wishes to amend the existing rules for Class V wells and draft proposed rules for Class II wells.

IT IS, THEREFORE, HEREBY RESOLVED that the Board authorizes the Director of the Idaho Department of Water Resources to initiate the rule amending process for the Board.

IT IS FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board hereby authorizes the Director to appoint a hearing officer to conduct the appropriate hearings.

DATED this \_\_\_\_\_ day of November, 2011.

Chairman

ATTEST:\_

Secretary